LANDSAT DATA CONTINUITY MISSION

MISSION OPERATIONS ELEMENT

RESPONSES TO DRAFT RFP QUESTIONS

NNG0810412J
1. Are contractors who are defined as LDCM Mission Systems Engineer and who work for companies that are potential bidders sufficiently firewalled and bound to a comprehensive OCI?
A: Per FAR 9.505-1, all contractors supporting the LDCM team who are employed by a potential MOE bidder have strict firewalls in place.  In addition, all contractors supporting the LDCM team have clauses contained in their contracts prohibiting them from using any information they gain for competitive advantage in any other procurements.   
2. Contract Section G.3 Award Fee for End Item Contracts (c) (4) states: All interim (and provisional, if applicable) fee payments will be superseded by the fee determination made in the final award fee evaluation.  The Government will then pay the Contractor, or the Contractor will refund to the Government the difference between the final award fee determination and the cumulative provisional fee payments.  If the final award fee evaluation is “poor/unsatisfactory”, any base fee paid will be refunded to the Government. The potential for the erosion of all of the award fee is a significant risk.

A: This procedure is in accordance with NASA FAR Supplement 1852.216-77 Award Fee for End Item Contracts.

3. The MOERD does not contain requirement reference numbers.  This is needed for the SPVM to maintain traceability.  All requirements should have unique reference numbers.
A:  The MOE-RD will include reference numbers in the final RFP.

4. Does LDCM MOE automation require lights-out re-planning (no operator inputs or actions required) during the 72-hour automation period (based on CAPE inputs, new ephemeris, etc.)?  The following requirement under Planning & Scheduling section 7.3 caused us to question the specific requirement for lights-out re-planning: “The MOE shall provide the capability to generate a conflict-free activity schedule spanning 72-hours of activity.  Rationale: Supports higher level requirements for Autonomous Operations requirement.”

A: Yes, the capability to autonomously re-plan in response to delivery of a new Image Data Collection Schedule from the CAPE is expected. This capability may be routinely exercised. The level of human involvement in nominal (problem free) cases may be minimal. The final version of the MOE Requirements Document Section 1 will expand on the concept to address the auto-generation process.

5. Will the spacecraft use CFDP Class 1 or Class 2? Is all memory on the spacecraft using CFDP (on-board computer, SSR, etc.)?  Note: The Spacecraft Requirements Document 7.10 states that the file management on the spacecraft will use CFDP Class 1, that is unacknowledged. This does not guarantee delivery of the files from the spacecraft to the ground station. This also means we will need to have tools in the MOE to verify the files before releasing the memory on-board.  

A: Both Class 1 and Class 2 have been evaluated with respect to the spacecraft bus. The LDCM project has opted for implementation of CFDP Class 1 utilizing retransmit requests generated by the MOE based on LGN evaluation of the received data. See Section 1.3.2 of the draft MOE Requirements Document for a narrative related to stored data management.

6. Regarding COMSEC, will the CCSDS command blocks coming in to the spacecraft bus first go through the Decryptor for authentication, and then passed on to the CLTU extraction for subsystem distribution, or will the they get extracted first then passed on to the decryptor for authentication?

A: Command blocks will first go through the decryptor prior to CLTU extraction on the spacecraft.

7. Do Pseudo-Telemetry metadata need to be updated to the Project Reference Database or do the definitions of pseudo definitions exist solely in the MOE telemetry database?  Note: Assuming that the telemetry database format will be XTCE, the XTCE specification does not directly support the definition of pseudo-telemetry or derived mnemonics. The closest it gets is a reference to an algorithm, which can be an external script, a shared library name, a Java object file, or anything else.

A: Yes, pseudo-telemetry metadata must be updated in the PRD.  See the DFCD reference document on the LDCM Project Library website for more information.

8. Will NASA provide detailed information regarding the “suitcase simulators”?  Examples of information needed is:

a. The platform requirements for the suitcase simulator and is the platform supplied?

b. The hardware requirements for the Suitcase Simulator.

c. I/O cards requirements.

d. Will the “suitcase simulator” have the capability for multiple instances that can be tasked, for example, by several testers simultaneously?

e. When will they be provided?

f. Please provide a functional and interface description of the Suitcase Simulator.

g. Will there be any limitations on the availability of the “suitcase simulators” for MOE development and test?

A:  The “suitcase simulator” also known as the Portable Spacecraft Simulator (PSS) will be provided by the Government for the Government’s use in ground system and ground network testing.  There is no requirement for the MOE vendor to provide a unique interface to the PSS, therefore the information requested will not be provided.

9. Please specify the date by which NASA will provide the Spacecraft Interface Simulator (SIS) and the Spacecraft/Observatory Simulator (SOS) to the MOE contractor. Will it only be available in the MOC or will it be available at the development facility for some period of time?

A: The SIS and SOS are deliverables to the Government from the spacecraft vendor.  The SIS is intended to support the testing between the instrument and spacecraft bus.  The SOS is intended to support ground system testing and FOT training and will be delivered to the MOC.  See the spacecraft SOW and requirements provided as reference documents on the LDCM Project Library website for need dates and other requirements.  The FOT will be heavily integrated in ground system development and will serve as test conductors for the ground system.  Any conflicts regarding the simulator are the responsibility of the Government.

10. The RFP section B.1 deliverable requirement indicates Mission Monitor and Analysis capability is delivered with H/W, and SOW 4.3 is referenced, as is MOERD 17.1. However, Mission Monitor and Analysis capability is not explicitly stated in SOW 4.3 (but it is in MOERD 17.1).

A: This will be corrected in the SOW 4.3 as part of the final RFP.

11. Will there be Key Personnel requirements in the final RFP?

A:  There is no requirement to provide information (e.g. resumes) for Key Personnel.  The Key Personnel Clause is no longer applicable.

12. Will the detailed project schedule called for in Section L C.1.1 be excluded from the page count?   

A: The schedule will not be included in the page count.  This correction will be reflected in the final RFP. 

13. Will NASA post functional capabilities and user manual documentation in the library for the GOTS List Exhibit 5?  
A: Most functional capabilities documentation is available on http://gmsec.gsfc.nasa.gov
Others documents may be made available no later than Final RFP release date.
14. For consistency and realism in pricing purposes, please specify a reference quantity of telemetry screens to be developed by the contractor. An example of the information needed would be:

a. 100 screens of digital information with 40 parameters per screen.

b. 50 GUI screens with 10 widgets per screen.

c. Numbers and characteristics of Dynamic Remote Overview Displays as specified in MOERD 8.5.2.

A:  The Government will not specify these quantities.  The MOE-RD requires the capability for the MOE operator to generate and store operator-configurable displays. 

15. Cost Charts Exhibit 2 provides for 8 labor categories but does not provide Position Descriptions for each position for all bidders to use (Cost Instruction Exhibit 1) for their mapping from their corporate labor categories to these labor categories. Will the government provide position descriptions and qualifications it expects all bidders to use for consistency across bids?  
A: Position descriptions will not be provided for the Cost Chart Exhibit.  The Offeror is required to use their approved accounting system which must include the Offeror’s defined position descriptions.  

16. The fact that the bus design and, in particular, complexity of the C&DH system and C&T database are unknown at this time could be a risk. 

A: The Government recognizes that the specific bus design is unknown at this time.  The LDCM schedule necessitates the need to release the MOE RFP prior to bus selection.  The MOE Contractor will be provided a representative spacecraft command and telemetry database/handbook (from the selected bus vendor) very shortly after contract award as stated in section 4.1.1 of the SOW.  Updates will be provided through the PRD throughout MOE development.  The PRD will accommodate the spacecraft database and will perform any needed translations. 

17. Are option year costs for sustaining engineering included in evaluation?  

A: Yes.

18. SOW Section 1.1, A.1, page 9: M-SRR listed as “Contract Effective Date (CED) + 1 month” – This milestone poses a very tight schedule to complete requirements analysis, develop the level 5 detailed MOE requirements (MO-3, due 5 days < M-SRR), and prepare the M-SRR package (due 5 days < M-SRR); Can this milestone be adjusted to allow for more complete requirements analysis?
A:  The SRR date will be changed to CED+45 days.  This will be reflected in the final RFP.

19. Sow section 1.1.A.1 - With a MOE CED of June 2008, the MOE PDR would take place after the Mission PDR. Is this the correct assumption?

A: Yes

20. SOW Section 3 and MAR - How often are NASA IV&V interface meetings expected to be held?

A: This is unknown at this time.

21. SOW Section 2.1, page 16, “a. Performing requirements management and traceability using a commercial software tool” – Is this a Government-provided tool, or does the contractor need to provide?  Does a tool already exist at the mission level for tracking the requirements?

A:  A requirements management and traceability tool will not be provided by the Government.  The contractor must provide their own tool.  The Government currently uses the commercial tool DOORS for requirements management.  However, the particular tool proposed/used by the Offeror will not be part of the proposal evaluation.

22. What configuration management (CM) and discrepancy reporting (DR) system does GSFC use?

A: The LDCM project uses Cicero for CM.  A DR system has not been determined.  The Government will not provide a CM or DR tool.  Note that the specific tools for CM and DR proposed by the offeror will not be evaluated in the proposals.

23. The SOW requires use of an electronic library or use GSFC’s Docushare.  If Docushare is used, will the Government provide access to the GSFC system?
A: Yes, the Contractor will be given access to the GSFC Docushare system, if desired.  However, use of the GSFC Docushare site is not a requirement.
24. The SOW states that peer reviews should be assumed to last one day.  Can they be shorter than one day?

A: Yes
25. SOW Section 4.3 - What is the scope of the OTS release?

A: This is clearly defined in the SOW, section 4.3.

26. SOW 7.0 – what is expected for technology refresh?

Where is technology refresh addressed, given the nature of the longevity of the mission? (5 years + five 1-year options)

A: The Government will be responsible for performing technology refresh, not the MOE Contractor.

27. SOW Section 4.3 – Is it necessary to require software deliveries at both the CED+15 months and CED+18 month milestones?  These releases are close together causing a lot of testing overhead in a short time period.

A: Both of the releases are required at the times noted in order to support ground system integration, testing, and deliveries to the GSFC and EROS MOCs.

28. CDRL PM-2 pg 4-10:  “The IMS shall include tasks necessary to accomplish the total scope of work as defined in the work breakdown structure (WBS) including the space segment and ground segment.” – Why is space segment included here? Is this a typo?

A: This is an error and will be corrected in the final RFP.

29. CDRL PM-2, IMS 5 B, page 4-11: “Activity durations shall not exceed 20 work days (exceptions must be explained in the Contractor Schedule Assessment Report).” – Why is this constraint being applied? Many task activities may have durations exceeding 20 days. 

A: The 20 work day requirement will be removed and the correction reflected in the final RFP.

30. CDRL PM-2, item g., page 4-12: “Weekly I & T Schedule – A weekly I & T schedule shall be submitted in contractor format containing prior week and the work planned for the next two weeks.” – Why is the MOE contractor required to prepare a weekly I&T schedule?  This is typically done by the S/C contractor.
A: This is an error and will be corrected in the final RFP.

31. CDRL PM-7, page 4-15: “Financial reports shall be provided down to WBS level 4.” – The WBS provided in the Cost Charts only goes down to level 3; Is there a typo in PM-7, should be level 3?

A: This is an error and will be corrected to level 3 in the final RFP.

32. CDRL SE-6 SPVP, page 4-40: “The SPVP describes the approach (test, analysis, etc.) that will be utilized to verify each Space Segment Requirements Document and Mission Operations Element Requirements Document requirement.” – Why is the Space Segment RD specified here?  Is this a typo?  Also, page 4-41: “The Final SPVP due 15 days prior to M-PR” – What is this review (not listed in SOW)? Typo? 

A: The reference to Space Segment Requirement Document is an error and will be corrected in the final RFP.  “M-PR” is intended to refer to the MOE Pre-Ship Review, or the M-PSR.  This will also be corrected in the final RFP.

33. CDRL M-1 provides the acronym MSR for the Monthly Project Status Reviews.  However, PM-2 references MPSR – is this also referring to Monthly Project Status Reviews?

A:  MSR and MPSR both are intended to refer to the Monthly Project Status Reviews.  This has been corrected and will be reflected in the final RFP.

34. CDRL PM-7 - In Table 3-1, PM-7 – Financial Reports – has a quarterly and monthly due date.  However, the SOW (pg. 15) seems to suggest that the report is provided at the MPSR only.   Please clarify.

A: PM-7 shall be delivered both quarterly and at the MPSR.  The SOW will be modified to clarify that PM-7 is also required on a quarterly basis in accordance with contract Clause G.1, Financial Management Reporting.  
35. Section M, Draft RFP Description/Specification/Work Statement, M3, Subfactor D, #4, Page 106:   What factors will determine the “Probable Cost”?

A: The FAR and NFS sections referenced in section M.4 of the RFP specify the factors used for determining probable cost.
36. SOW sections 1.3 (resource management), 5.2.1 (operations training), 5.2.2 (simulations and rehearsals), etc. do not explicitly appear in the Section M evaluation criteria – how are we to address them?

A: Section M of the final RFP will be modified to include resource management and operations readiness activities.

37. Regarding SOW section A.4 Instrument Milestone Review, are the Instrument Fabricators requiring a review prior to installation on their site of an MOE element?

A:  There is no planned formal review for this event.  

38. Regarding SOW Section A.5 Spacecraft Reviews, are the Spacecraft Manufacturer’s requiring a review prior to installation on their site of an MOE element?

A:  There is no planned formal review for this event.  

39. Regarding the MOE-RD, section 8.4 and the following requirements: 
· The MOE shall be capable of generating trending products from real-time telemetry.

· The MOE shall be capable of generating trending products from stored telemetry.

· The MOE shall be capable of generating statistical products from real-time telemetry.

· The MOE shall be capable of generating statistical products from stored telemetry.
The trend analysis section mentions that trending and statistical products need to be created from either real time or stored telemetry. Has a need been identified to further merge the data to create some kind of continuous record or does the stored data cover all the data found in real time?

A: The intent of the above four requirements was to indicate that product generation capability is required for the real-time data stream and processing of recorded (on spacecraft or ground) housekeeping & GSE data. Access to data continuous through the mission is defined by multiple requirements throughout the MOE Requirements Document (MOERD), including Section 3 and the first two requirements of Section 8. 

40. Is there a requirement to be able to plot (on paper and real-time) data vs. time, data vs. data and data versus orbit angle?

A: The final version of the MOE Requirements Document Section 8.4 will include the following requirement:  The MOE shall provide the capability to generate trend products using operator-selected time or parameter domain.

41. Is there a requirement for stacked graphs, i.e. different data sets, offset from the first by a fixed amount in integral intervals?

A: The final version of the MOE Requirements Document Section 8.4 will include the following requirement:  The MOE shall provide the capability to trend up to ten different range parameters per trend output.

42. Regarding the following requirement in the MOE-RD, “The MOE shall send Project Reference Database (PRD) information to the Integration & Test Facility and the Launch Site.  Rationale: MOC developed Project Reference Database (PRD) can be transferred to the remote MOE for review and evaluation. This interface may require a re-formatting of the information by the MOE” -    Since the format of the PRD is defined in detail in the DFCD, it may make more sense to have the user of the PRD perform the reformat than in trying to maintain one or more unique translators in the highly revision-laden environment of the MOE. Could this requirement have something to the effect of sending the “updated DFCD along with any updates of the PRD” added?

A: Yes, requirements for the database translations and transfers are the responsibility of the PRD. The requirement stated above along with the similar requirement to “receive” will be deleted from the final version of the MOE Requirements Document.

43. Regarding the requirement in MOE-RD section 17.4 Launch Support Room (LSR), “The baseline LSR MOE shall deploy to this facility sufficient to support the following:
FUNCTIONAL UNIT QUANTITY

Front End 1

CMD/TLM Workstations** 28***

Mission Monitor & Analysis 1 (open access)

Planning & Scheduling 0

Flight Dynamics 1

** at least 6 of 28 with command capability

*** A portion of these workstations may be attached to a MOC Front End.” - Does the MOE require voice communications for launch support under this contract? What number of communications devices are needed per CMD/TLM workstation? The same question applies to the bMOE and the mini-MOEs at the SC manufacturer and Instrument Fabricators facilities?
A: Voice communication capabilities are not included of this contract.
44. Work Breakdown Structure (WBS) 5.1.2 is listed as: “WBS 5.1.2 Ground System and Mission Readiness Training”. But is listed as: “WBS 5.1.2 Ground System and Mission Readiness Testing” in the Statement of Work (SOW). Will NASA correct the WBS?

MOE WBS sheet: WBS 5.1.2 is listed as “Ground System and Mission Readiness Training” – SOW section 5.1.2 is titled “Ground System and Mission Readiness Testing” – Is this a typo? The SOW appears to be the correct one.

A: This is an error and will be corrected in the WBS in the final RFP.

45. Instructions for Preparing the Mission Operations Element (MOE) Cost Charts (exhibits), Page 10:  Please convey the allocation of the $5000 for travel.  The current page 10 instructions only identify $4000 across FY09, FY10 and FY11.

Question (RFP page 12): B.8 provides $5K in “non-proposed costs” for travel to the S/C vendor to attend spacecraft reviews. Is this separate from travel to the S/C vendor for mini-MOE I&T?

A: This part of the Cost Instructions has been modified.  The Government has changed its estimate for travel to the spacecraft/observatory contractor.  The estimate is now $6,000 and should be proposed with $3,000 in FY08 and $3,000 in FY09, and should include all travel to the spacecraft/observatory contractor, including travel to support delivery/I&T of the mini-MOE.  This $6,000 will roll into the total proposed for this contract.  If bidders choose to propose travel dollars greater than $6,000 for spacecraft/observatory related trips only they may do so.  However, those trips should be listed separately in the travel detail tab, from this $6,000 value that will be proposed by all offerors.  This $6,000 value is not to be considered the total travel for this contract, but for the trips related to the spacecraft/observatory vendor only.

46. Instructions for Preparing the Mission Operations Element (MOE) Cost Charts (exhibits), Page 10:  Are the travel allocations in Government Fiscal Year or contractor Fiscal year?

A: Travel allocations are in Government fiscal year.  The Cost Chart Instructions will be modified to clarify.

47. Section C, Draft RFP Description/Specification/Work Statement, C2, Page 12:  The Government has identified that there is a not to exceed number of hours to 
support the activities in WBS 2.4 (Special studies), 7.2 (Task Support), 
and 8.2 (Task Support).    The hours were used to establish 'the cost and 
fee(s) of this contract.    Are these hours to be bid in the cost proposal? 
What position (i.e. labor category) descriptions do these hours correspond?

C.2, page 13, Item 1 LoE lists 11,205 labor hours for WBS elements 2.4, 7.2, 8.2, however the SOW states that each task will be initiated by the CO as needed.  Is this pool of hours expected to be part of the proposal?  How are we to determine the appropriate labor categories for undefined work in order to cost the labor? 

How should the special study hours be costed? E.g. should they be spread over time?  What labor categories or rates should be assumed since no scope is defined?

A: This area has been modified.  Section C.2 of the RFP now corresponds only to WBS 2.4 and SOW Section 2.4, Special Studies.  SOW Section 2.4 and RFP section C.2 cover studies that may be required, but at this time are unknown, during the development through early operations phase of the contract.  The number of hours corresponding to C.2 and WBS 2.4 will be changed to 1000 hours.  The Offeror shall propose this number of hours at their discretion in the cost proposal using the standard labor categories provided in the Cost Application.  Offerors shall propose these 1000 hours considering how they would assign labor to study technical issues.  The Cost Instructions and SOW have been modified to include these clarifications. 
The number of hours corresponding to WBS 7.2 and 8.2 (and SOW sections 7.2 and 8.2) will be addressed under the new clause C.5, Government-Directed Sustaining Engineering Task Order Support.  Hours will be specified on a per year basis.  Fixed fee may be adjusted based on the actual number of hours expended in support of WBS 7.2 and 8.2.   The Offeror shall propose the number of hours specified in this clause C.5 at their discretion in the cost proposal using the standard labor categories provided in this cost application.  Offerors shall propose these hours considering how they would assign labor to the sustaining engineering tasks specified in SOW 7.2 and 8.2.  The Cost Instructions and SOW have been modified to include these clarifications.
48. Section L, Draft RFP Description/Specification/Work Statement, L14 (a) Past Performance Volume Information from the Offeror, Page 93:  We recommend the following changes.

a. “…similar efforts over $5 million in value which you company has had within the last five years.”, be changed to …similar efforts $3 million or greater which your company has had within the last three years.  

Many Federal Agencies and FAR set-aside rules put a $3 million limitation on small business contracts, hence the reason for the suggested change.  The last three years provides the most relevant time frame for programs that are ongoing or completed.  The reasoning is that a program finished 2 years ago, may have been started many years before that.

b. “(1) For all similar mission operations systems for which the Offeror was the prime Contractor that have been delivered in the past five years,…”  , be changed to, (1) For all similar programs for which the Offeror was the prime contractor or subcontractor that have been delivered in the past five years…

Programs that were not specifically mission operations systems can have relevance to the MOE.  The reasoning is that functional elements of the MOE may be the basis for another program and are relevant (i.e. modeling and simulation).  Small businesses have relevant qualifications as subcontractors to large Prime Integrators on Mission Operations Systems.  They may have overall responsibility for complete functional areas.  The reasoning is that a small business may have qualifications in every major component of the MOE but as a subcontractor to a large business prime.

L.14.(a)(1) and (2), Past Performance - The statements in these two paragraphs seem to indicate that bidders have a prime contract on a mission operations contract. Will the government consider changing this to allow other capable small businesses to bid on this procurement?

If an offeror is submitting performance on a contract in which the offeror is the subcontractor, please confirm if it is acceptable for that subcontract value to be below $5 million?

Question (RFP page 67): This procurement is a Small Business set aside under NAICS Code 541512 with a $21M size standard. Given that firms pursuing this contract as prime are small businesses and may not have contracts valued in excess of $5M, would the government consider eliminating the $5M criteria for past performance and allow any contract with relevant past performance to be used in establishing past performance?

M.5, Past Performance - With regard to relevancy, what consideration will be given to contractors who have not been the prime contractor?

A: Section L of the RFP will be modified to address the following:

The Offeror and significant subcontractors may provide past performance for efforts valued at $1,000,000 or greater in which they participated (or are currently participating in) as either a prime or sub contractor.  The Offeror must provide past performance on all similar efforts completed/delivered within the last 5 years and all similar active efforts to be delivered within the next 5 years.  Significant subcontractor(s) must provide past performance for all similar efforts completed/delivered in the past 3 years as well as all similar active efforts to be delivered within the next 5 years.  Please also note that the procurement is a Small Business set aside under NAICS Code 541512 with a $23M size standard, not $21M as was submitted in the above question.

49. The DRFP section L.14 states that prime contractors must show relevant contracts as a prime for similar efforts over $5M and as a prime instrument contractor.  Is the intent that a small business has to have primed a MOC development program in the past?  Is the intent further that the prime small business must have primed an instrument contract in the past?

For section L.14 item (2), page 95, does the government mean to say “For all similar mission operation systems….currently in the development or implementation phase…” or “For all instruments….currently in the development or implementation phase…”? 
(to mirror Draft RFP, Section L.14, pg. 94 paragraph 2, item (b).) 

A: See answer to question 48 above.  The references to “instrument”, “instrument(s), and “instrument contracts” are in error.  These will be corrected in the final RFP.

50. Past Performance Questionnaire, pg. 1 - the instance in which the offeror is a subcontractor and not the prime, please clarify if the offeror should provide a questionnaire to the government customer or to the prime contract holder? Or to both?

Past Performance Questionnaire, pg. 1 - If the offeror provides services as a subcontractor on the contract, please clarify how  items C through G should be answered.  Does the Government wish to see information on the subcontract or on the prime contract?

A:  If the Offeror or significant subcontractor was/is not the prime contractor on a similar effort, the questionnaire shall be provided to the prime contractor.  Section L will be modified to clarify this.  

51. Section L, Draft RFP Description/Specification/Work Statement, L14 (B)Past Performance Volume, Past Performance Questionnaires, Page 97:  Instructions require completed questionnaires to be in a sealed envelope.  Please consider having the questionnaires delivered through email.

A: Email delivery is unacceptable.  Per Section L the offeror will provide Exhibit B, Past Performance Questionnaires to its references.  The references will submit responses to questionnaires in a sealed envelope to the MOE contracting officer specified in L.14.  The questionnaire may be sent through the mail or by commercial delivery service (e.g. FedEx, DHL, etc.) to the address specified in L.14.  The offeror shall include a list within its proposal that states to whom the questionnaires were sent, including name of individual, phone number, organization, and contract number.  The offerors shall also include in their proposal the written consent of their proposed significant subcontractors and/or team members to allow the Government to discuss the significant subcontractors' past performance evaluation with the Offeror.

52. Section M, Draft RFP Description/Specification/Work Statement, M4, Cost Evaluation Factor, 4th paragraph, Page 106:  “This is a full and open competition…”  Since this is a small business set-aside, do the price adjustments apply?   

M.4, Cost Evaluation - Regarding the statement, "Refer to FAR 19.201(b), FAR 19.11 and to FAR clause 52.219-23, “Notice of Price Evaluation Adjustment for Small Disadvantaged Business Concerns.”  The adjustment shall be applied to the assessed “probable cost”.  The adjustment will not be made if there are no Small Disadvantaged Business (SDB) offeror(s) or if all SDB offerors have waived the price adjustment." Is this statement still applicable to a Small Business Set-Aside procurement?

A: Section M.4, COST EVALUATION FACTOR, will be corrected to read.  "This is a small business set-aside competition within the North America Industry Classification System (NAICS) Industry Subsections determined by the Department of Commerce."  Both the proposed cost and the probable cost will be presented to the Source Selection Authority.  As a result of the correction, FAR 19.201(b), FAR 19.11 and FAR Clause 52.219-23, Notice of Price Evaluation Adjustment for Small Disadvantaged Business Concerns are not applicable.
53. Section L refers to approved accounting, compensation, and procurement systems.  Are approved systems required?
A: In order to receive a cost type contract an offeror must have an accounting system determined adequate by the Defense Contract management Agency (DCMA) for accumulating and reporting incurred prior to contract award.  Subcontractors that are to receive a cost contract are also required to have an accounting system that has been determined adequate by the DCMA.  Other systems such as Estimating, Property Control, Employee Compensation, and Purchasing shall be reviewed by DCMA to determine the adequacy of the system.  As stated in Section L, "Explain any existing conditional acceptances/approvals and the compliance status of any system(s) for which acceptance or approval is currently withheld" (i.e., currently under review).  A cost contract will not be awarded to an offeror  prior to an adequate determine by DCMA of its Accounting System. 
54. Page 1, 4th paragraph: “As part of the solicitation, the Government is offering Government Off the Shelf (GOTS) Tools (listed in enclosure to the RFP) that offerors may use in proposing to the requirements.  The Government is not requiring the use of the tools but is making them available to all offerors.  The draft RFP does not state how a cost adjustment will be made by the Government for proposing the use of the GOTS tools.  However, it is anticipated that the final RFP will include such a provision.”  – If the offeror proposes GOTS products, how are any associated costs for support/maintenance of the GOTS products to be handled?  

Who is responsible for maintenance of GOTS products? For GLAST and LRO, the NASA GOTS contractor is providing the enhancements to the GOTS tools in support of those respective missions and not the MOC Development contractor; will the LDCM Project take the same approach here?

A:  As stated in the draft RFP, the use of government-off-the-shelf (GOTS) software is not encouraged or discouraged in the Mission Operations Element procurement.  The Government will evaluate GOTS versus non-GOTS solutions in accordance with FAR 15.101-1, Tradeoff Process.  The FAR states "A tradeoff process is appropriate when it may be in the best interest of the Government to consider award to other than the lowest priced offeror or other than the highest technically rated offeror." 

The Government is not required to direct or make cost adjustments for GOTS software.    The MOE final RFP will not contain a provision requiring cost adjustments for GOTS software.  The MOE contractor is responsible for GOTS and customized software maintenance for the life of the contract.  Thus, these costs will be part of the contract and the Offeror shall provide proposed costs for GOTS and customized software maintenance for the basic period of sustaining engineering and the sustaining engineering option years as part of the cost application under WBS 7.1 and 8.1, respectively.

55. How will GOTS tools be costed?  How do you get an apples to apples comparison between GOTS and non-GOTS solutions?

A:  See Answer to Question 54 above.  The Government is not required to direct or make cost adjustments for GOTS software.    The MOE final RFP will not contain a provision requiring cost adjustments for GOTS software.

56. Please clarify NASA's exact CMMI requirements, and in particular, please provide the interpretation we are to use for NPR 7150.2, Appendix D Requirements Mapping Matrix, and Note 3 on this subject.  

Statement of Work, Section 3, page 19: The SOW states that “the Contractor shall demonstrate compliance with NASA Software Engineering Requirements specified in NPR 7150.2” and that “The Contractor shall assume the MOE software assurance classification is Class B.”  Requirement SWE-032 in Paragraph 2.5.1 in NPR 7150.2 states that “Consistent with the Requirements Mapping Matrix (Appendix D), the project shall ensure that software is developed by either a software CMM Maturity Level 3 or higher organization; or by an organization that has a CMM-SE/SW Capability Level 2 or higher as measured by a Software Engineering Institute (SEI) authorized lead appraiser from an external organization in the following areas:.” Table D in NPR 7150.2 indicates that requirement SWE-032 applies for Class B projects but “in lieu of a CMM/CMMI certification by a developer, the project will conduct a software capability evaluation in the seven process areas listed in SWE-032 and mitigate any risk, if deficient.”   Please clarify whether the requirement in Section 3 of the SOW is that the contractor shall be CMM L3 or CMMI L2 certified or if the project will conduct a software capability evaluation.

Is CMMI Level II certification an explicit requirement?

A: CMMI level II or level III certification is not required.  If the Contractor is neither a Capability Maturity Model (CMM®) Maturity Level 3 or higher organization, nor an organization that has a CMMI®-SE/SW Capability Level 2 or higher as measured by a Software Engineering Institute (SEI) authorized lead appraiser from an external organization, then NPR 7150.2, Appendix D, Note 3 shall apply.  The MOE RFP Section L, Subfactor C, paragraph C.3 will be clarified to require the offeror to provide an overview of their software development and management approach and software quality assurance program, including the approach for compliance with NPR 7150.2 and NASA-STD-8739.8 as part of their proposal.  The project evaluation referred to in NPR 7150.2, Appendix D, Note 3 will be performed through the evaluation of this section of the proposal.  Note that any exception to this requirement (including Note 3) or any other MOE RFP requirement must be described in the Deviations/Exceptions section of the Mission Suitability proposal.  Otherwise, this requirement (or Note 3) and all other MOE RFP requirements will be expected to be fulfilled as part of the MOE Contract.

57. Section B, page 8, C. Documentation: item C-10 lists delivery of IT Security Plan 30 DACA, but this document is not listed in the CDRL;  Item C-11 lists Risk Assessment Plan due 30 DACA – Is this the same document as the Risk Management Plan (CDRL PM-12)? Both reference Clause I.19, which does not exist in the draft RFP.

In Table 301, PM-12 is referenced as – Risk Management Plan.  Is this the same as C-11 - Risk Assessment Plan, referenced in Section F?  If so, then the delivery dates are off.  The CDRLs request the plan 30 DACA Draft, 60 DACA Final, and Section F requires it 30 DACA and annual updates.  Please clarify.

A: The IT Security Plan and Risk Assessment Plan cited in section B.1 of the RFP are required by NASA FAR Supplement 1852.205-76,  SECURITY REQUIREMENTS FOR UNCLASSIFIED INFORMATION  TECHNOLOGY RESOURCES.  The Security Requirements for Unclassified Information Technology Resources clause is included in full text in Section I.  It has been deleted as an I.1 clause by reference.  Section B, Item C-10 will be updated.  Clause I.19 does not exist and any references to I.19 have been deleted.     The Risk Assessment Plan referenced as C-11, Section B.1, Section E and Section F and the Risk Management Plan called as CDRL PM-12 are separate and distinct documents.
58. MOE-RD Section 3, page 22: “The MOE shall utilize an open architecture with standard interfaces for extensibility, scalability, and simplification of I&T.” – This is not a testable requirement, should be a design goal.
A: The requirement, rewritten for the final MOE Requirements Document released with the final RFP, will read:  The MOE shall utilize an open architecture with standardized interfaces.

Rationale: supports extensibility, scalability, and simplification of I&T, enables modularity and scalability, plug and play architecture
59. MOE-RD Section 4.1, page 25: “The MOE shall comply with Homeland Security Presidential Directive [HSPD]-12, two-factor authentication based on Public Key Infrastructure [PKI] and Smartcards.” – NASA implementation standard for Smartcards is currently TBD.  Clarification of requirements will be needed to cost this item.  

A:  In the final release of the MOE Requirements, the requirement will be added to section 4.1:

When federal Personal Identity Verification (PIV) credentials are used as an identification token where token-based access control is employed, the MOE access control system shall conform to the requirements of FIPS 201, Personal Identity Verification (PIV) of Federal Employees and Contractors and NIST Special Publication 800-73, Interfaces for Personal Identity Verification. 

60. MOE-RD Section 8.3, pages 51-52: The Analytical Modeling requirements are vague and don’t specify the specific functionality needed; this section basically requires a generic modeling capability.  These requirements are not sufficient to adequately scope and cost the effort.  Please clarify the requirements to specify the functionality needed.

A:  As stated in the introductory sentences of Section 8.3, this section is intended to define the requirements for a documented generic capability (interface) between the ground system and externally developed models. It is expected that the Solid State Recorder model requirements defined in section 10.2.3 would be supported by this generic capability.

61. MOE-RD Section 16.13, page 93: “The bMOE shall support all the same interfaces as the MOE, identified in sections 13.1 through 13.12.  (Section 14.8 is applied for a bMOE and bMOC interface.)” – typo, Section 13 is Operator Interface; should be 16.1 through 16.12, correct?  Section 14.8 does not exist.

A:  The requirement will be corrected in the final version of the MOE Requirements Document as follows:
The bMOE shall support all the same interfaces as the MOE, identified in sections 16.1 through 16.12.  (Section 16.8 is applied for a bMOE and bMOC interface.)

62. MOE RD, Sec 4, IT Security - Will the LDCM MOE be classified as a standalone system requiring its own site security plan (SSP), or will it be added as a new system under an existing SSP? 

A:  The MOE Contractor will deliver a SSP for the MOE development environment at their facility; this is the IT Security Plan required in Section B.1 and in Section I of the RFP.  MOE components delivered to the LDCM project will be included under an existing and separate LDCM facility SSP/IT Security Plan.

63. MOE RD, Sec 9.2, Flight Dynamics - Does definitive ephemeris generation using GPS on-orbit data mean “raw GPS observables” (e.g. pseudo range & Doppler), or simply GPS states? 

A:  In MOE-RD Section 9.2 “definitive ephemeris” means raw GPS observables.  Utilization of raw GPS observables is needed to obtain estimates of sufficient quality to support the predicted ephemeris accuracy requirements.

64. Cost template, Last sheet “Extra Not in Contract Value” – Please clarify Page 13 of instructions, item 41.

A: In the “Extra Not in Contract Value” tab the Offeror shall provide the estimated cost to the Government for MOE COTS software maintenance (e.g. COTS licenses) following the transfer of all COTS licenses and software ownership to the government, as stated in SOW Section 6.2.  Since COTS licenses will be transferred to the government, the costs for maintaining COTS software following MOE acceptance will not be part of the MOE contract.  However, the Government requires knowledge of these costs for evaluation and long term planning. 

The MOE contractor is responsible for GOTS and customized software maintenance for the life of the contract.  Thus, these costs will be part of the contract and the Offeror shall provide costs for GOTS and customized software maintenance for the basic period of sustaining engineering and the sustaining engineering option years as part of the cost application under WBS 7.1 and 8.1, respectively, 

65. Cost template: Where should hardware costs be shown? The SOW 4.1 broken down by function; it may be difficult to spread the costs of hardware here.  Can the hardware costs be shown in WBS 4.3? 

A: The Offeror may show hardware purchases and maintenance in any WBSs in this cost application they feel are appropriate, according to the following information:

Software

Commercial Off The Shelf (COTS) software purchases and maintenance are to be proposed in the WBSs defined for the development period of the basic contract (contract award through launch and final acceptance of the MOE).  These are WBSs 1.0 through 6.0.  Launch is currently scheduled for July 2011.  Final acceptance is anticipated to occur at launch + 90 days.  Obtaining Government Off The Shelf (GOTS) software does not include a purchase cost as the Government does not charge for GOTS.  

Since the MOE Contractor will be responsible for all GOTS customization and maintenance, it is assumed that labor hours may be proposed for work performed that involves GOTS software if it is acquired.  If labor hours related to GOTS software are required during the development period, they will be proposed in WBSs 1.0 through 6.0 according to the Offeror’s approach.   Labor hours related to GOTS software expended during the basic sustaining engineering period will be proposed in WBS 7.1.  Labor hours related to GOTS software expended during the option periods will be proposed in WBS 8.1.  

Hardware

Hardware purchases will be proposed according to the Offeror’s approach in any WBS they feel is appropriate.

The ODC section of the cost application has been revised.  Lines have been modified so that the following are now available:




Hardware Purchase and Maintenance




Software Purchase and Maintenance

Hardware and Software Maintenance

The cost application has been revised to include two tabs for detailed backup -  hardware purchase and maintenance, and software purchase and maintenance.  These two tabs are for the purpose of entering individual lines of information for purchases of hardware and software.  These two tabs are also for the purpose of entering individual lines of information about maintenance costs for hardware and software.  Purchase values will be entered by WBS and by GFY and will be subtotaled separately from maintenance values.   Maintenance costs shown in ODCs and detailed in these tabs are for purchases that must be made to obtain maintenance.  Labor hours expended for maintenance are not to be proposed as ODCs.  The cost application instructions have been modified to cover this revision.   

66. Please clarify whether or not the Offeror must provide its own COMSEC account.

A: If the Contractor does not already possess a COMSEC account, the Contractor must establish one following the MOE security indoctrination / COMSEC briefing referred to in SOW Section 4.1.3.  This indoctrination will be performed by Government security personnel and shall be hosted at the Contractor’s facility, nominally in conjunction with the MOE kickoff meeting.  The indoctrination will last no more than 2 days.   The COMSEC account will be established upon completion of the indoctrination.  SOW Section 4.1.3 has been edited to reflect this clarification.

67. Cover Letter, Small Business Work share - Is the 50% requirement of work performed for the offeror a waiver of the SBA 51% standard rule?

A:  No.  The cover letter refers to the work a small business must perform in a small business set-aside requirement.  The rule states that under the small business set-aside requirement, the prime offeror shall provide at least 50% of the cost of the contract incurred for personnel with its own employees.  The Small Business Administration “51 percent standard rule” refers to the ownership of an entity in making their determination to whether an entity qualifies as a small disadvantaged business.  

68. CDRL  - In Table 3-1, MO-6 is referenced as – Mission Operations Element Test Reports.  Is this the same as CDRL MO-6 – Acceptance Test Results/Reports, as referenced in SOW, pg. 27 and 23?  If so, then the delivery dates listed in Table 3-1 (3 days after Test, Final) and the SOW (all MOE delivery releases) do not seem to match?   Please clarify.

A: MO-4, MO-5, and MO-6 have been renamed as MOE Application Acceptance Test Plans, MOE Application Acceptance Test Procedures, and MOE Application Acceptance Test Reports, respectively.  A preliminary version of MO-6 will be required 3 working days after each test; this corresponds to the SOW Section 4.2 reference to MO-6.  The final version of MO-6 is required with each delivery; this corresponds to SOW section 4.3.  The SOW and CDRL Table 3-1 have been modified to reflect this clarification.

69. Attachment F, OCI Plan - Is the Government consider participation by a contractor under LDCM MOE as a potential OCI with the following upcoming procurements to cause an OCI situation with a contractor that would be participating:  LDCM-FOT, LDCC, or TSSC?

RFP Section B, Table C: Would companies supporting LDCM MOE be restricted from other work related to LDCM or not related to LDCM?

A: Offerors are required to submit an OCI plan with their proposal to show how they will identify, report, avoid, mitigate, or neutralize organizational conflicts of interest with any other LDCM related procurements.   

70. RFP M.2 – What are the relevancy details for Past Experience Evaluation?  It is not noted as an Evaluation Subfactor.

A:  As stated in M.2 the relative order of importance of evaluation factors is as follows:  The Cost Factor is significantly less important than the combined importance of the Mission Suitability Factor and the Past Performance Factor.  As individual Factors, the Cost/Price Factor is less important than the Mission Suitability Factor and is equal in importance to the Past Performance Factor.  Section M.5 of the Draft RFP states that the government's evaluation of Past Performance will reflect information contained in the written narrative,  past performance evaluation input provided through customer questionnaires (Exhibit 2), and other references, if any, that the Government may contact for additional past performance information.  Offerors without a record of relevant past performance, or for whom information on past performance is not available, shall receive a neutral rating in accordance with FAR 15.305(a)(2)(iv).   The relevance of any particular past performance is based on the size, content and complexity of the past effort to the requirements of this solicitation, as well as how current.  
71. RFP M.4 – Is the Price Evaluation Adjustment for SDB Concern applicable to primes only; or to the SDB subcontractors as well?

A: The reference to Price Evaluation Adjustment for SDB is not applicable to set-aside procurements.  M4 will be corrected in the final RFP.

72. Which companies attended the MOE Industry Day?  Which companies have responded to the MOE RFIs and notices?

A: A source list was posted to the Federal Business Opportunities website and the LDCM website on January 16, 2008.  The list includes companies that attended Industry Day, responded to RFIs and/or otherwise expressed an interest in the MOE procurement.

 
73. Under the Mission Suitability volume proposal content and page limitations description (RFP Page 81), it is stated that “(a) Cover Page, Indices, PM-5 Engineering and Peer Review Plan, Evaluation Criteria Matrix, Safety & Health Plan and Acronyms” are excluded from the page limitations. Should PM-11 Project Management Plan also be included in the exclusion from page limits?

A: PM-11, Project Management Plan will not be required with the proposal.  Only a summary of your plan will be required.  This will be corrected in the final RFP.

74. Section C: C.2 GOVERNMENT-DIRECTED STUDIES AND ANALYSES (LEVEL OF EFFORT) - Are there any current items that the government feels will deserve special study immediately upon contract award?
A:  Section C.2 of the RFP corresponds to SOW Section 2.4, Special Studies.  Special studies will not be pre-defined by the Government.  SOW Section 2.4 and RFP section C.2 cover studies that may be required, but at this time are unknown, during the development through early operations phase of the contract.  SOW Section 2.4 has been clarified in this regard.

75. Should any proposed enhancement be written in as part of proposed solution in the Mission Suitability?  How should enhancements be costed?  Should they be costed separately?
A: As stated in Section L, the offeror must clearly provide for the enhancement in Contract Attachment E, Contractor Proposed Enhancements, and the offeror must describe the benefit of the proposed enhancement in the proposal under the applicable Mission Suitability Subfactor.   Enhancements should be costed as part of the Cost Application within the appropriate WBS(s).  The narrative tab of the Cost Application must include an explanation of the number of hours by labor category, travel, ODCs, and corresponding WBSs for the enhancements.  There should be a separate BOE for the enhancements that further explains the hours needed.  The Cost Instructions will be modified to provide these clarifications.

76. The MOE-RD requirements mention Keyset Zero Set.  We have not been able to determine what this function is, and have not found a definition in the SOW, requirements document or elsewhere in the draft RFP.  Any information on this would be greatly appreciated. 
A:  This term has been added to the MOE-RD Glossary as:  Keyset Zero Set – encryption keyset cleared

77. MOE-RD Section 17 states that the MOE capability is to be the same at the satellite I&T facility, sensor I&T facility, MOC and bMOC.  We agree with the MOC and bMOC, but it has been our experience that the Planning and Scheduling functions are not typically required at the satellite and sensor integration facilities.   Sections 17.1 and 17.2 somewhat support this by saying that these two facilities are only for command and telemetry.   If the requirements can explicitly state that no planning and scheduling capabilities are required at the sensor and satellite integration facilities, NASA will save on hardware and the installation of software that really isn’t needed. 

A:  The first requirement of MOE-RD Section 17 has been modified to read: Deployments of MOE functionality shall have the same form, fit and function in each deployment. The number of copies of each workstation type or application may vary. Rationale: Components of the MOE shall be common to all deployments, allowing for equipment swapping and minimal reconfiguration requirements.


The sub-sections of MOE-RD Section 17 clearly define the minimum functional requirements of each MOE deployment. 

78. How many days after the release of the RFP will the proposal response be due? 

A:  GSFC envisions the proposal due date not later than 30 days after the release of the final RFP. 
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